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Solicitation # NNH05116650R, Enterprise Architecture
Question 1: The RFP Letter dated 9 December 2005, states "Questions regarding this procurement must be submitted in writing by 12 o'clock Noon, Friday, 16 December 2005."   On page 25 of the solicitation, the question due date states 12 o'clock Noon, Tuesday, 13 December.   Which date is correct?
Answer 1: Questions regarding this procurement must be submitted in writing by 12 o’clock Noon on Friday, 16 December 2005.

Question 2: Who is currently performing this work?

Answer 2: The work is currently being performed by Information Dynamics as a subcontract under the Pace II contract (Contract # NNH05CC83D) with RSIS, Inc. at Glenn Research Center. 
Question 3: Please clarify the Small-Business revenue and employee size for the NAICS Code: 541611, referenced in this RFP.
Answer 3: The NAICS code and Size Standards are 541611 and $6.0M, respectively.

Question 4: If the work is being done through a sub-contractor, does the prime need to qualify for this NAICS Code or just the sub?
Answer 4:  Yes, the prime does need to qualify under this NAICS code and size standard.
Question 5: Is the $6.0M size standard defined as sales per the most recent year?
Answer 5:  The Company's average revenue for the past three (3) years cannot exceed $6.0M
Question 6: Is there any possibility that you will consider an extension on the due date of proposals?
Answer 6: Yes, quotes are now due by close of business (2:00 pm EST), Friday, 13 January 2006 – see Amendment 2 to the RFP.
Question 7: Is there any possibility that you will reconsider the NAICS code category that this procurement was released under?  
Answer 7: This is a small business set-aside. NASA’s Industry Assistance office has determined that the NAICS code for this requirement is appropriate.
Question 8: What is the timeframe for award of this contract?

Answer 8: The Government anticipates award will be made approximately 30 days after receipt of proposals.
Question 9: Will the government be releasing a list of potential prime contractors so that bidders can pursue teaming arrangements?
Answer 9: No, the Government will not be releasing a list of potential prime contractors for this effort.

Question 10: Page 29 states that “One (1) original and three (3) copies of all proposals must be submitted. In addition, an electronic copy must also be submitted.” The RFP cover letter states “One original and (1) copy of requested information shall be submitted to the Contracting Office.” Which statement (RFP or cover letter) should be followed?
Answer 10: One original and (1) copy of requested information shall be submitted to the Contracting Office. Proposals shall be delivered to: NASA Goddard Space Flight Center, Building 16W, Greenbelt, MD 20771, Attn: Jackie R. Wolfe.

Question 11: Is it correct to assume that if an offeror has one or more subcontractors that the past performance citations required remains at 5?  For example, if an offeror has 2 subcontractors, the government would like to see only 5 past performance citations rather than 15 (five for the prime and five for each of the 2 subcontractors).

Answer 11: Please see Amendment 1 to the RFP
Question 12: This vendor is prepared to offer references for work performed by the personnel proposed in response to perform the subject NASA contract. While the firm’s performance is important and we will include past performance citations for the company, we also would like to offer past performance citations for our proposed personnel so that NASA will have direct references for the personnel to be assigned to this contract if awarded to our firm.  Some of these references will be from contracts performed with prior employers but the references will have detailed knowledge of our employees past performance.  Is this acceptable?
Answer 12: Offeror’s must provide 5 past performance citations for work that the Prime Contractor has performed and 2 past performance citations for work that all Subcontractors have performed (See Amendment 1 to the RFP). 
Question 13: Reference is made to an oral presentation is this paragraph although no other reference to oral presentations can be found in the RFP.  Will the government be providing additional guidance for the oral presentation at a later time? Is this optional?
Answer 13: Oral presentations will not be requested for this effort. This is not an option to potential offerors for this requirement.
Question 14: As a 100% small business set aside; can the offeror utilize a large business as a subcontractor?  If yes, does the offeror need to perform a specified percentage of the work (i.e. 51% or greater).
Answer 14: As a small business set-aside, the prime contractor must be a small business and perform at least 51% of the work under this contractor. 
Question 15: We have provided the Past Performance Questionnaire to one of our customers and it appears that the Work Elements in the Relevant Past Performance Matrix apply to some form of facilities work rather than Enterprise Architecture Consulting support.  Can the government provide an updated Relevant Past Performance Matrix?  
Answer 15: Please see Amendment 1 to the RFP
Question 16: Does NASA have an existing contractor doing some or all of the work described in this RFP?
Answer 16: Please see response to Question 2 above
Question 17: If an existing contractor does exist, do you believe they are a small business as defined under the RFP NAICS code?
Answer 17: Yes
Question 18: If NASA has an incumbent contractor, have they performed any work as described in the RTO’s.
Answer 18: The incumbent has performed work similar to that as described in the RTOs.
Question 19: Did the contractor prepare any part of the NASA Enterprise Architecture (EA)?

Answer 19: The contractor in conjunction with NASA staff has prepared the NASA EA documentation volumes.
Question 20: If any part of the EA is available to the incumbent, can the bidders on this RFP have equal access to the EA?

Answer 20: The EA volumes have been provided and are available on FedBizOpps.
Question 21: Will the Government please make available NASA’s 7120.5C process that is referenced in the RFP?

Answer 21: Go to the following website, and select 7000- 7999 Program Formulation, then select NPR 7120.5C: 

http://nodis3.gsfc.nasa.gov/
Question 22: Will the Task Orders under this contract be Firm Fixed Price Labor Hour or Firm Fixed Price Deliverable?

Answer 22: Costs for each Task Order will be negotiated using the Fixed Price labor rates in EXHIBIT 4, PRICE PROPOSAL FOR REPRESENTATIVE TASKS.
Question 23: Is competition on this solicitation limited to companies who are currently working on EAs in NASA programs and projects or who have previously worked on them?

Answer 23: Competition is not limited.
Question 24: Will the Government please release the NASA EA Procedural Requirements 2830.1 to potential offerors?

Answer 24: Go to the following website, and select 2000-2999 Legal Policies, then select NPD 2830.1 NASA Enterprise Architecture
http://nodis3.gsfc.nasa.gov/
Question 25: Will the Government please release it latest submission of EA Volumes 1-5 for the sole purpose of analysis and review in developing the proposal?
Answer 25: The documents have been uploaded onto FedBizOpps for your review.
Question 26: In reference to page 39, Attachment A, III, 4th bullet – Is this a reference to the Service Component Reference Model and the word “Component” was inadvertently dropped? Is the development of the SRM a new start or are there some existing artifacts can be analyzed 

Answer 26: NASA is using the Service Component Reference Model, this is not a new start.
Question 27: Please confirm that ITPM refers to the adaptive tool. Has NASA adopted this tool agency wide for its EA development and management? Are all the existing EA artifacts generated in this tool and stored in this repository?
Answer 27: ITPM is the Adaptive Tool. All EA artifacts are stored in this repository.
Question 28: What architecture repository is currently in use? In what EA tool or tools have the EA artifacts for the various NASA programs and projects been developed?

Answer 28: ITPM is the Adaptive Tool. All EA artifacts are stored in this repository.
Question 29: Will the Government please release the referenced draft Volume 6 and the EA NPD/NPR for the sole purpose of analysis and review in the development of the proposal?
Answer 29: Draft Volume 6 has not yet been submitted to OMB and therefore is not yet available to the public. Please see Question and Answer # 25 for the EA NPD/NPR.
Question 30: Please confirm that the existing requirements, policies, procedures for documentation of the As Is, To Be, Gap Analysis, and Transition Plans are currently documented in the NASA 2830.1. We note that there are no provisions/requirements for analyzing the deltas in the Gap Analysis/Transition Plan of the particular year against the Gap Analysis/Transition Plan for the previous year. Was this an omission?

Answer 30: Existing requirements, policies, and procedures are at the end of the 2830.1.
Question 31: Can you provide further details about the incumbent contractor (ie: contract value and expiration date)?

Answer 31: The current delivery order value for this effort is $895,029.00 and the expiration date of January 31, 2006.
Question 32: What is the proposal format for Mission Suitability Factors?
Answer 32: A. Understanding the Requirement


        B. Management Plan

                   C. Representative Task Order


Please see Amendment 1 to the RFP
Question 33: In 1.5, it states “The period during which the Government has the right to issue orders under this contract shall be from the effective date of the contract and end three years thereafter.” In 1.7, it states “The maximum amount of supplies or services that may be ordered during the effective period of this contract is $3,200,000.” Does this imply that the contract cost is to be spread over three years and not the two option years?
Answer 33: The maximum of $3,200,000.00 applies to all five years (3 year base plus two 1-year optionperiods).
Question 34: On the use of subcontractors, Subfactor A asks us to discuss the functions of the subcontractor arrangements in meeting the requirements. Subfactor B asks us to describe the planned usage of subcontractors. Could we combine both of these into one explanation?
Answer 34: Please detail the use of subcontractors as described separately in Subfactor A and Subfactor B in the RFP.
Question 35: Will there be a bidder’s technical library with the NASA publications (NPRs) and current EA Volumes in it?
Answer 35: These documents are accessible on FedBizOpps under this RFP.
Question 36: If the current support is coming from Glenn Research Center, does that mean that the new contractor can work from of the Centers (KSC, MSFC, JSC) or is a presence at NASA HQ required?

Answer 36: The contractor can work from the contractor’s office. An on-site presence is not required. However, travel to HQ or other centers will be required.
Question 37: Will the Government please provide additional information on the NASA EA Community and CORE NASA EA team to facilitate pricing and curriculum Basis of Estimate development?
Answer 37: There are approximately 70 people in NASA EA Community and approximately 12 on CORE NASA EA team.
Question 38: Page 31 Subfactor C references Exhibit B. Should this be Exhibit 3 instead?

Answer 38: Please see Amendment 1 to the RFP
Question 39: Page 33 Representative Task Order (RTO) Costs references Exhibit C. Should this be Exhibit 4 instead?
Answer 39: Please see Amendment 1 to the RFP
Question 40: Page 33, last sentence “…offerors shall provide detailed backup spreadsheets that include the following elements by month:” Should this information be provided by year instead of month?

Answer 40: Please see Amendment 1 to the RFP
Question 41: Can you please tell me what companies I should contact to position our company as a subcontractor for this procurement?
Answer 41: This information is not available to the Government.
Question 42: Will the winning contractor be supporting any other contractors doing similar work within NASA or will the winner work directly with the Government? 

Answer 42: Work will be performed directly with the government and/or contractor staff representing NASA projects.
Question 43: What tools and technologies is NASA using or planning to use for the EA repository?
Answer 43: ITPM from Adaptive.
Question 44: What is the relative weighting of Subfactor A, Subfactor B and Subfactor C?

Answer 44: The relative order of importance is defined in the RFP in Section III.11, EVALUATION--COMMERCIAL ITEMS (52.212-2) (JAN 1999). There are not weights assigned to each of these Subfactors.

Question 45: Will performance under this contract create an Organizational Conflict of Interest (OCI) with respect to, for example, the Hybrid Information Technology Support Services (HITSS) contract? 

Answer 45: The Government does not anticipate any Organization Conflict of Interest (OCI) issues at this time. 
Question 46: Are offerors to submit the Technical and Price proposals in the same volume?
Answer 46:  For ease of evaluation, the Government prefers that the Technical and Price proposals be included in the same volume. 
Question 47: How many senior NASA points of contact will need to be coordinated with across the 11 centres and 4 mission areas?
Answer 47: Varies, but main EA POC is the Deputy CIO/Chief Technology Officer at HQ.
Question 48: Will the successful offeror have access to NASA networks for communication, coordination, scheduling and collaboration with NASA participants? What percentage of the total workforce has access to these collaboration tools?

Answer 48: Yes, all NASA employees and contractors have access to necessary tools.
Question 49: What level/type of security clearance is required for this effort?

Answer 49: Security Clearance is generally not required, unless a sensitive project undergoes an EA review.
Question 50: Is experience with OMB FEA Enterprise Architecture Assessment Framework v2 and/or GAO EA Maturity Management Framework considered equivalent?

Answer 50: No
Question 51: Will this contract be a single award or multiple awards?
Answer 51: The Government intends to award one IDIQ contract for this requirement.
Question 52: Could the page limit of the proposal please be clarified?
Answer 52: The Basis of Estimate narrative shall not exceed 5 pages for all Representative Task Orders. The Mission Suitability, including RTOs, shall not exceed 20 pages.
Question 53: Are EA Volumes provided to OMB through OMB Exhibit 300?

Answer 53: Not as an OMB Exhibit 300, but supplemental documentation.
Question 54: Is development of NASA OMB Exhibit 300 documentation part of the support required under RTO 1 or 3?
Answer 54: Supplemental documentation is part of the support required.
Question 55: Does RTO 1 require support for GAO audits?

Answer 55: Possibly, as stated in the RTO 1.
Question 56: What tool(s) is/are used by NASA for OMB Exhibit 300 Business Case development (i.e. ProSight, eCPIC, etc)?

Answer 56: ProSight is the tool used for OMB 300 submission.
Question 57: Is OMB Exhibit 300 development performed by internal personnel or contractor?

Answer 57: Mix of government employees and contractors supervised by government employees.
Question 58: What other (if any) OMB compliance efforts are required as part of performance of the services in this RFP (i.e. Risk Analysis, Benefit-Cost Analysis, etc)

Answer 58: None at this time.
Question 59: Are there any sizing guidelines to support the BOE development of RTO # 3 requirement titled “Sustained General Support”?

Answer 59: No, general support as required.
Question 60: Which EA framework has NASA used to develop its EA?

Answer 60: Modified Zackman and FEA standards.
Question 61: What is the status of the Business, Performance, Data and Technical reference models?
Answer 61: Updated semi-annually when OMB updates theirs semi-annually.
Question 62: Is the content related to the EA Volumes stored in a standalone database, word documents, or in a tool? EA repository is a database? Identify/list the types of documents in the EA repository.

Answer 62: ITPM data repository by Adaptive.
Question 63: How are the EA Volume reports generated? Can you query the volumes?

Answer 63: No, the volumes are currently MS Word documents.
Question 64: Will the current process flow related to EA Governance, Change Request and Update be made available?

Answer 64: The process flow will be provided, upon contract award, to the successful offeror.
Question 65: Does the NASA EA include a standard enterprise tools and services?

Answer 65: ITPM data repository by Adaptive.
Question 66: Will you define and give examples of what a NASA service is? Can you identify what is a service operating plan and documents for both SS and MLC? Define what a Service Portfolio Life Cycle is? Can you give us an example?
Answer 66: Review the OMB 300 documentation or any OMB EVM documentation.
Question 67: Can you identify the EA review artifacts?

Answer 67: EA volumes have been provided on FedBizOpps
Question 68: Since proposals are due by 4:30 pm and the shipping dock closes at 3:30 pm, will someone be available to accept proposals between those times?
Answer 68: Please see Amendment 2 to the RFP and the answer to Question 6 above.
Question 69: What is the anticipated date for the performance of this contract to begin?
Answer 69: The period of performance is anticipated to begin February 1, 2006.
Question 70: Please clarify the following “While there is no limit to the number of pages for each RTO’s BOE, the aggregate BOE page limit for the RTOs shall not exceed 5 pages.”

Answer 70: The BOE page limit for all 4 RTO’s combined shall not exceed 5 pages. However, there is no BOE page limit for each RTO individually. (i.e. RTO 1 BOE = 2 pages, RTO 2 BOE = 1 page, RTO 3 BOE = 1 page, RTO 4 BOE = 1 page for a TOTAL of 5 pages).  
Question 71: Where is the Price Proposal for Representative Tasks located? 
Answer 71: This is located on page 69 of the original RFP, entitled Exhibit 4.
Question 72: The work scope describes providing Information Technology Project Manager (ITPM) training. What is ITPM? (i.e. person, position, application, etc.)
Answer 72: ITPM is the EA data repository.
Question 73: What software is used by NASA to develop custom reports?
Answer 73: ITPM
Question 74: The evaluation criteria discussed in III.11 refer to the Mission Suitability factor as the most important factor. Within the Mission Suitability factor is there a ranking of importance of the subfactors?
Answer 74: There is not a ranking of importance of the subfactors listed under the Mission Suitability factor. 
Question 75: Which code at NASA does this RFP directly support?
Answer 75: NASA HQ no longer uses codes, but the RFP will support the Office of the Chief Information Officer (OCIO).
Question 76: Where should key personnel be defined regarding technical expertise, experience, etc.?
Answer 76: Please refer to Subfactor C: Representative Task Orders (RTO’s)

Question 77: Should resumes of key personnel be provided and if yes, what section? Are resumes included in the page count limit?
Answer 77: Resumes are not required. 

Question 78: Would the benefits of the Native Alaskan designation outweigh exceeding the $6M NAICS cap?
Answer 78: No, the NACIS cap applies to all offerors.
Question 79: In regards to Amendment 1 to the RFP, are small businesses expected to provide 5 past experience efforts of similar size and scope within the past five years?
Answer 79: Yes. Offerors without a record of relevant past performance, or for whom information on past performance is not available, shall receive a neutral rating in accordance with FAR 15.305(a)(2)(iv). 

Question 80: As an example, if I have 10 team partners for this solicitation, does NASA want 2 past experience write-ups for all 10 subcontractors equaling 2 total, or 2 past experiences write-ups for each of the 10 subcontractors equaling 20?
Answer 80: NASA requires 2 past experience write-ups for each subcontractor. Therefore, if you have 10 subcontractors performing major or critical aspects of the work, NASA would require 20 past experience write-ups consisting of 2 from each subcontractor. Please refer to Amendment 2.
Question 81: Do you plan to use any Microsoft Technology?
Answer 81: No new purchase of tools is planned.
Question 82: Does this requirement include support for Desktop/Server/User Configuration Management Support & Information Assurance needs under Microsoft Active and Microsoft Group Policy (GPO’s)?
Answer 82: No
